
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
ROWAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 2, 1982 

 
 The Board of Rowan County Commissioners met in Regular Session in the 
Community Building on August 2, 1982 at 9:00 A.M.  The following members were 
present:  Chairman Eugene McCombs, Rufus Honeycutt, Hall Steele, Jim Sides and 
Jim Cohen. 
 
 Chairman McCombs called to order and Commissioner Sides opened with 
prayer. 
 
 The minutes of July 6, 1982 were approved with one correction.  Chairman 
McCombs requested that paragraph seven 1st page read that the 175 people would 
be eligible for the workfare program instead of saying that they were hired.  
Commissioner Honeycutt made a motion that the minutes of July 6 and July 19 be 
approved.  Commissioner Steele seconded with unanimous approval. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch said that Mr. Gunn, Emergency Management Coordinator had 
requested to be placed on the Agenda provided that Mr. Joe Myers, Area 
Coordinator, could arrive in town in time to discuss an EOC shelter. 
 
 Chairman McCombs called for any comments concerning monthly reports.  
Commissioner Steele said that they seemed to be self-explanatory. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch read a letter addressed to Chairman McCombs from Centralina 
Development Corporation, Inc. stating that during December, 1981 that Mr. 
McCombs and Commissioners were asked to appoint three business persons to help 
organize CDC, Inc. since that time they have incorporated the organization and 
applied to the Small Business Administration for certification.  On June 16 they 
received notification that they had been certified. 
 
 The primary objective of the 503 SBA program is to provide long-term 
financing at an interest rate less than market for the construction, expansion and 
renovation of commercial property.  The program also provides for the purchase of 
machinery and equipment.  They have set a goal of $3,000 for each of the eight 
participating counties.  Chairman McCombs commented that he was under the 
impression that the CDC would not cost the County anything. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt suggested that the Board wait until they hear from 
Mr. R.O. Everett and Mr. Dan Williams, who are Rowan County’s representatives 
on the CDC before reaching any decisions.  This was agreeable with the Board. 
 



 Mr. Murdoch read a note from Pat Nelson, Board of Elections informing 
Commissioners that the estimated expense for the second primary would be 
$10,260. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch informed the Board that he had received letters from both 
Senator Jesse Helms and Congressman Heffner stating that both of them had 
contacted the proper committee people concerning the Resolution to make studies of 
the Reservoir development in the South Yadkin River Basin that the 
Commissioners had adopted last month.  Mr. Murdoch stated that our legislation 
would keep behind it and let the Board know how it comes along. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch informed the Commissioners of a request from the Office on 
Aging for a $25.00 petty cash fund to make change for participation in selling 
tickets and passes for rides on the transit system upon request from the City of 
Salisbury.  Their assistance in this would make it more convenient for the elderly.  
Commissioner Steele made a motion to approve this request.  Commissioner 
Honeycutt seconded with unanimous approval. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch read a letter from Juanita Olsen, Director of the Rehabilitation 
Workshop, thanking the Commissioners for their continued support for the 82-83 
fiscal year.  She stated in her letter that some of the things provided would not be 
possible without the Board’s support. 
 
 Commissioner Cohen informed the Board that the Chamber of Commerce 
would be making a presentation concerning road priorities for Salisbury in 
Kernersville this week.  Mr. Cohen commented that the Commissioners might have 
better recommendations than those of the Chamber.  Commissioner Steele said that 
he was planning to attend. 
 
 Commissioner Cohen presented one road petition for approval.  Seven 
Springs Road in Cleveland Township in Spring Acres Subdivision.  To add .30 miles 
in length.  Commissioner Cohen made a motion that the road petition be approved.  
Commissioner Steele seconded with unanimous approval.  (Attached) 
 
 Glenn Trexler, Tax Collector, reported tax collections for the month of July, 
1982 to be $77,562.49. 
 
 Chairman McCombs declared the public hearing open on changing the name 
of White Rock Church Road to Queener’s Ct.  Since there was no one present to 
speak for or against, Chairman McCombs declared the public hearing closed.  
Chairman McCombs commented that he had received a call from a lady in Charlotte 
who wanted to complain.  He told her to get in touch with the people who made the 
request.  Commissioner Cohen made a motion that the road name change be 
approved.  Commissioner Honeycutt seconded with unanimous approval. 

 2 



 
 Mr. Murdoch reported personnel replacements: 
 
 Raymond Pierce at $621 replacing Larry Keaton at $621- Janitorial 
 
 Gralon Burris at $829 replacing Bobby Steele at $789- County Building 
Assistant Supervisor. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch commented that he had given Mr. Burris a one-step increase 
because of his background and qualifications.  That he was an experienced 
carpenter and electrician. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt made a motion to approve the personnel 
replacements.  Mr. Steele seconded.  The motion passing with Commissioner Sides 
voting No. 
 
 After a short break, Commissioners were requested to make an appointment 
to the ABC Board.  Paul Propst’s term expired on August 1, 1982.  Commissioners 
Cohen and McCombs voted for Mrs. J.F. Alexander.  Commissioners Steele and 
Honeycutt voted for Paul Propst to serve another term.  Mr. O. Maynard Newman 
who submitted a resume was eliminated.  After taking a second vote which was 
identical to the first vote, Attorney Clarence Kluttz said that Mr. Paul Propst would 
continue to serve until a successor is appointed.  Chairman McCombs commented 
that the reason he voted for Mrs. Alexander was because he had known her for 
twenty years and had previously appointed her to the Board.  Commissioner 
Honeycutt commented that he had participated in the appointments of all these 
board members and that we have three good qualified people.  Chairman McCombs 
said this matter would be left open until next month. 
 
 Commissioner Sides who did not vote for anyone to the ABC Board, requested 
to make a lengthy speech which he said he knew would be unpopular with a 
number of people, but in line with the thinking of others. 
 
 He said it was hypocritical of the Commissioners to pass a Resolution 
proclaiming Alcohol Awareness Week when it would not recognize that alcohol was 
a problem.  He said that “my commitments would not allow me to appoint anybody.  
I’m that strongly opposed to ABC Stores in Rowan County.” 
 
 He said he realized the ABC Board was formed for control, “and yet I feel 
there is no control.” 
 
 He opposed the $50 for regular members on the ABC Board and the $100 for 
the Chairman.  He said sales averaged $445,000 or 67,967 bottles per month.  He 
said for every $1 spent on beer, wine and liquor, the public had to spend $6 on social 

 3 



and mental health problems.  He said, “I don’t believe we are making any money 
from the sale of liquor in Rowan County or any other county.”  Commissioner Sides 
said right was right and wrong was wrong and liquor sales went against God’s 
word. 
 
 He then read from a pamphlet which was an open letter to those who sell 
alcoholic beverages.  It called alcohol sales the “most disreputable business of the 
world.” 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt said that the County would still have costs dealing 
with alcoholics and their broken families if ABC stores were closed. 
 
 Commissioner Sides said the referendum would settle the issue once and for 
all, either proving him right and closing the ABC stores or proving him wrong and 
closing his mouth on the topic.   He said the referendum could be put on the 
November ballot and would not cost the County anything. 
 
 Commissioner Sides made a motion to place the liquor referendum on the 
November ballot and give the people a chance to vote for or against.  Commissioner 
Cohen seconded.  Commissioners Honeycutt, Steele and Chairman McCombs voting 
No. 
 
 David Graham gave Commissioners a summary report for fiscal year July 1, 
1981 to June 30, 1982.  Gross liquor sales, taxes paid, net profit and total revenue 
paid to Rowan County. (Attached) 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt asked Mr. Graham his opinion of what would 
happen if there were no liquor stores in Rowan County.  Mr. Graham answered as a 
former officer with the Sheriff’s Department, said that before ABC stores were 
established here, deputies spent half of their time working bootleggers.  He said 380 
bootleggers were arrested in Rowan County in the first year after the ABC 
operation started.  As far as control is concerned, there is no comparison, Mr. 
Graham stated. 
 
  Chairman McCombs stated that Mr. Side’s motion might have been made to 
make him look bad, but he believed the people had expressed themselves when they 
passed a referendum in 1949 to establish ABC Stores.  Until 15% of the registered 
voters sign petitions saying they want such a vote placed on the ballot, he would not 
vote to hold another referendum. 
 
 Commissioner Sides said to Chairman McCombs, my motion was not made to 
make you look bad- but to put the referendum on the ballot and let the people vote 
on it- let them make that decision. 
 

 4 



 Commissioner Honeycutt moved the introduction of the resolution to issue 
revenue bonds to pay all or a portion of the costs of the acquisition, construction and 
installation of a freezer storage and distribution facility near Salisbury in Rowan 
County to serve the food processing facilities of Hardee’s Food System, Inc. 
including land, a building, and equipment.  Commissioner Steele moved the passage 
of the resolution and Commissioner Cohen seconded the motion, and the resolution 
was passed with Commissioner Sides voting against. (Attached) 
 
 Bob Richardson, director of engineers for the firm, estimated the total cost of 
the distribution center would be $2.8 million. 
 
 Commissioner Sides said it was unfair to allow Hardee’s to obtain low 
interest financing when citizens had to pay high interest rates on their homes.  He 
further stated that giving the firm special treatment was a “gross injustice to the 
people of the county.” 
 
 Reviewing the issue of paving a driveway for Hardee’s Distribution Center on 
Circle M Drive- spending $18,000 on that when citizens were waiting to have the 
roads to their homes paved was an injustice, commented Commissioner Sides. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt said to let the records show that the County did not 
pay for the drive for Hardee’s that it came out of secondary road funds and the cost 
was more like $12,000. 
 
 Mr. Jim Sloan with the Historical Properties Commission was present to 
present tot he Commissioners an activity report of the restoration of Kerr Mill.  He 
stated that more funds were needed for restoration.  Commissioner Honeycutt made 
a motion to underwrite the Historic Properties Commission for up to $15,000.  More 
than the $46,000 it already has for renovations of Kerr Mill.  Commissioner Cohen 
seconded with unanimous approval.  Mr. Sloan said that the Historical Properties 
Committee would hold fund raises to get additional money and the Commissioners 
agreed to pay the difference between $15,000 and the money raised. 
 
 Commissioner Sides commented that he had been out to the Park and he was 
definitely impressed with the building. 
 
 Mr. Edwin Koontz and Social Worker Supervisor, Bobbie Queen appeared 
before the Commissioners with a resolution allowing the Department of Social 
Services to apply for four free car seats from the UNC Highway Research Center for 
foster parents and social workers who transport children.  Mr. Koontz said that one 
seat would be stationed at the Donnelly Home.  Commissioner Steele made a motion 
to approve the resolution allowing the Department of Social Services to apply for 
the four free seats and allowing the County Manager to sign the contract.  

 5 



Commissioner Honeycutt seconded the motion with unanimous approval.  
(Attached) 
 
 Mrs. Lucille Hoffner, a resident on Black Road off Bringle Ferry Road 
complained to Commissioners about dust on her road caused by trucks bringing dirt 
to Isenhour Brick and Tile.  Isenhour Brick and Tile is located at the opposite end of 
the dead end road.  Mr. Carl Sloop, Jr. had gone out and made an investigation of 
this problem and reported to the Board that Mrs. Hoffner’s house which is the 1st 
house on the curve was most vulnerable.  He said that he had conferred with Mrs. 
Hoffner and Isenhour Brick and Tile and was told that legally nothing could be done 
and as of now, no solution has been reached. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt stated that this matter had been brought to the 
Board before and he thought something had been worked out with Isenhour. 
 
 Mr. Earnest Safrit, Treasurer of the Company, said the Company is aware of 
the problem.  The Company used to treat the road two or three times a summer, at 
$400 a treatment- cost is now- $1,350.  He stated that the trucks hauled 50 loads a 
day.  He tried to slow the trucks down.  The company has cut trees to build another 
road, but that road will cost $25,000. 
 
 Mr. Honeycutt left the meeting to call the Highway Commission to inform 
them of the trees that had been cut and the relocation of another road. 
 
 Mr. Hodges, a neighbor near Mrs. Hoffner, talked about the dust problem- 
the stated that the people lived in torment- can see clouds of dust- can’t open a 
window.  Mrs. Hoffner said, “she knew there were ten trucks in there at one time.” 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt returned after calling the Highway Commission 
and said that he was not able to talk with Mr. Kluttz or Mr. Honeycutt but that the 
secretary will get in touch and call back- he asked Mrs. Hoffner if they could wait 
until he gets an answer.  Chairman McCombs recommended going to the next item 
of business. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch informed Commissioners of a letter that he had just received 
from Sheriff Stirewalt requesting that Charles William Howard be moved into the 
slot of Benny Cook, dispatcher effective August 2 1982 today.  Mr. Cook turned in 
his resignation effective August 16, 1982 to take a position with the Mooresville 
Police Department with a salary increase of approximately $2,000 annually.  In 
order to prevent a shortage on the Patrol Squad which would necessitate using one 
of the road patrol men as a dispatcher- he requested to employ Mr. Howard now to 
receive training from the officer now holding this position.  Sheriff Stirewalt said 
that Mr. Howard has previous experience in law enforcement and dispatching area. 
 

 6 



 Commissioner Sides moved not to allow employment two weeks early.  
Commissioner Cohen seconded.  The motion denied with Commissioners Steele and 
Honeycutt and Chairman McCombs voting against. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt moved to grant permission to hire one week prior.  
Commissioner Steele seconded.  Commissioners Sides and Cohen voting against, 
Chairman voting I. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch reported Interest: 
 

General Fund $39,394.80 
Revenue Sharing 1,321.09 
Reappraisal 15.65 

Total $41,271.54 
 
 Mr. Murdoch presented a budget amendment resolution to provide for the use 
of the unexpended balances of Revenue Sharing funds appropriated in 1981-82.  
Fund balances- Post office $38,051.44- Street Signs- $10,666.18 and Airport- 
$1,566.80. 
 
 Commissioner Steele made a motion to accept the budget amendment.  His 
motion died for lack of a second. (Mr. Honeycutt being out of the room.) 
 
 Mr. Murdoch informed the board of a budget request from the Office on Aging 
to add a line item marked equipment to purchase a typewriter- to transfer $650 
from line item- Caterers- Commissioner Steele made a motion that this request be 
denied.  Commissioner Cohen seconded with unanimous approval. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt returning to the room informed the Board that he 
had talked with Charles Kluttz about the Black Road matter.  Mr. Honeycutt said 
Mr. Kluttz advised him to recommend Mrs. Hoffner and Mr. Yost to get in touch 
with Don Honeycutt.  They will try to work out a procedure to get the road 
relocated.  This will also take the initiative of Isenhour Brick and Tile Co. based on 
a number of factors.  Exa. Income, number of employees, etc.  Commissioner Sides 
commented that maybe something could be done on a temporary basis.  He made a 
motion to ask Mr. Sloop to seek means of rendering an emergency relief today until 
the State can come in.  His motion died for lack of a second. 
 
 Commissioner Steele then made a motion that a 10 mile per hour speed zone 
be placed on Black Road.  Commissioner Honeycutt seconded with unanimous 
approval. 
 
 Commissioner Steele made a motion that the 82 and 83 budget amendment 
be adopted.  Commissioner Honeycutt seconded- The motion passing with 

 7 



Commissioner Cohen voting No- Chairman votes I.  Commissioner Sides was out of 
the room at the time and attorney Clarence Kluttz commented that this vote should 
be delayed, Chairman McCombs said, “I did not excuse him, he excused himself.”  
Commissioner Sides returned to his seat and Commissioner Cohen made a motion 
that the budget resolution that we just passed be denied.  Commissioner Sides 
seconded.  Commissioners Honeycutt, Steele and Chairman McCombs voting No. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt asked Commissioner Cohen on what basis did he 
make this motion on – Commissioner Cohen answered that we acknowledged you 
when you were absent.  Commissioner Sides said he did not believe the $38,000 was 
needed- Commissioner Steele said a report by the State indicated the building was 
overcrowded and had dirty bathrooms.  Also, it needs renovation so the Department 
of Social Services can operate under one roof. 
 
 Commissioner Sides commented that if a bronze plaque honoring County 
Commissioners is placed in the West Innes Street Post Office- after the building is 
renovated, he does not want his name put on it because he was against the amount 
of money used to renovate the building.  Chairman McCombs said this would not be 
a problem that they would leave a blank space. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch informed the Commissioners of bids for the construction of 
restrooms and bridge at Sloan Park.  No bids were received on June 29, 1982.  
Placed again on July 16, 1982 and received two on the restrooms.  From Kannapolis 
Construction Company - $29,750 and Hannah Construction $26,850.  Bids on the 
Bridge- Mr. Murdoch received one from Yount Construction Company $18,983.40. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt made a motion that the contract be awarded to the 
low bidder.  Commissioner Steele seconded with unanimous approval. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch said just for information- The well-drilling contract will be let to 
Kannapolis well drilling at $7.00 a ft. the other two welling companies did not 
choose to bid on it.  We had to put in a meter box out there- the low bid on that was 
Rockwell Electric Company at $320- and the low bid for hauling gravel- $4.50 a ton 
to Gene Stoner. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch said that Mr. Charles Hedrick , Building Supervisor had 
received bids for painting exterior of the Donnelly Home. 
 
  Billy Sills – Top Notch  $2,200 
  Jim Whitely    $1,195 
 
 Commissioner Sides made a motion that the contract be awarded to the low 
bidder.  Commissioner Cohen seconded with unanimous approval. 
 

 8 



 9 

 Mr. Murdoch said the same outfit bidded on the 108 windows at the Post 
Office. 
 
  Billy Sills - $2,175 
  Jim Whitley- $2,900 
 
 Commissioner Steele made a motion to award the contract to the low bidder.  
Commissioner Honeycutt seconded with unanimous approval. 
 
 Mr. Robert Gunn, Emergency Management Coordinator and Joe Myers, Area 
Coordinator appeared before the Board requesting Emergency Operating Center 
Facility where they can have control in case of an emergency. 
 
 Mr. Myers explained to the board that he had received an extension on the 
project application- until August 10 in order to talk with them about it.  
Commissioners will have to designate area to meet federal standings. 
 
 Chairman McCombs inquired why are we just now asking for application 
when the funds ran out in July.  Mr. Myers answered that the money stopped and 
he was not aware of it.  He was not aware that there was money; but the money is 
there- $800,000. 
 
 Commissioner Honeycutt said he would like to look into it what the other 
counties are doing. 
 
 Chairman McCombs said we would look into it without any commitments on 
our part- this was agreed with the board. 
 
 Mr. Murdoch read a letter from Fred Lee, Heritage Home requesting to lease 
the land next to the Heritage Home.  There are three (3) acres adjoining the Barn.  
Dr. Richardson had been leasing this land.  Commissioner Honeycutt said he could 
see no problem.   Chairman McCombs requested that Mr. Honeycutt and Mr. Sides 
check into this matter and come up with a recommendation next month. 
 
 There being no further business, Chairman McCombs adjourned the meeting 
informing the Commissioners of the Board of Revaluation meeting that night at 
7:00 in the Tax Supervisor’s Office. 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
  
      Brenda L. Honeycutt, Clerk 
      Board of County Commissioners 


